
 

 
 
Notice of meeting of  
 

Decision Session -  Executive Member for City Strategy 
 
To: Councillor Steve Galloway (Executive Member) 

 
Date: Thursday, 28 January 2010 

 
Time: 4.00 pm 

 
Venue: The Guildhall, York 

 
 

A G E N D A 
 
 
 
Notice to Members – Calling In 
  
Members are reminded that, should they wish to call in any item on 
this agenda, notice must be given to Democracy Support Group by: 
  
10.00 am on Wednesday  27 January 2010 if an item is called in 
before a decision is taken, or 
  
4.00pm on Monday 1 February 2010 if an item is called in after a 
decision has been taken. 
  
Items called in will be considered by the Scrutiny Management 
Committee.  
  
Written representations in respect of items on this agenda should be 
submitted to Democratic Services by 5.00pm on Tuesday 26 January 
2010. 
 
 
1. Declarations of Interest    
 At this point Members are asked to declare any personal or 

prejudicial interests they may have in the business on this 
agenda. 
 



 
2. Minutes   (Pages 3 - 10) 
 To approve and sign the minutes of the last Decision Session 

held on 5 January 2010. 
 

3. Public Participation - Decision Session    
   

 At this point in the meeting, members of the public who have 
registered their wish to speak at the meeting can do so. The 
deadline for registering is 5:00pm on Wednesday 27 
January 2010.                 
  
Members of the public may register to speak on:-  

• an item on the agenda;  
• an issue within the Executive Member’s remit;  
• an item that has been published on the Information Log 

since the last session.  
Note: No information reports have been published since the 
last session.  
 

 

4. Revenue Budget Estimates 2010/11 - City Strategy  
(Pages 11 - 24) 

 

 This report is part of the consultation on the 2010/11 budget 
process. The report provides details of proposed growth and 
savings within the City Strategy Directorate. Full details of the 
budget will be considered by Executive on 16th February 2010 
and then Budget Council on 25th February 2010. 
 

5. Revenue Budget 2010/11 - City Strategy Fees and 
Charges  (Pages 25 - 34) 

 

 This report advises the Executive Member of the proposed fees 
and charges for the City Strategy portfolio for the financial year 
2010/11 and the anticipated increase in income which they will 
generate.  
 

6. Any other business which the Chair considers urgent 
under the  Local Government Act 1972   

 

 



 
Democracy Officer: 
 
Name: Jill Pickering 
Contact details: 

• Telephone – (01904) 552061 
• E-mail – jill.pickering@york.gov.uk 

 
 
 

For more information about any of the following please contact the 
Democracy Officer responsible for servicing this meeting  
 

• Registering to speak 
• Business of the meeting 
• Any special arrangements 
• Copies of reports 

Contact details are set out above 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



This page is intentionally left blank



About City of York Council Meetings 
 

Would you like to speak at this meeting? 
If you would, you will need to: 

• register by contacting the Democracy Officer (whose name and contact 
details can be found on the agenda for the meeting) no later than 5.00 
pm on the last working day before the meeting; 

• ensure that what you want to say speak relates to an item of business on 
the agenda or an issue which the committee has power to consider (speak 
to the Democracy Officer for advice on this); 

• find out about the rules for public speaking from the Democracy Officer. 
A leaflet on public participation is available on the Council’s website or 
from Democratic Services by telephoning York (01904) 551088 
 
Further information about what’s being discussed at this meeting 
All the reports which Members will be considering are available for viewing 
online on the Council’s website.  Alternatively, copies of individual reports or the 
full agenda are available from Democratic Services.  Contact the Democracy 
Officer whose name and contact details are given on the agenda for the 
meeting. Please note a small charge may be made for full copies of the 
agenda requested to cover administration costs. 
 
Access Arrangements 
We will make every effort to make the meeting accessible to you.  The meeting 
will usually be held in a wheelchair accessible venue with an induction hearing 
loop.  We can provide the agenda or reports in large print, electronically 
(computer disk or by email), in Braille or on audio tape.  Some formats will take 
longer than others so please give as much notice as possible (at least 48 hours 
for Braille or audio tape).   
 
If you have any further access requirements such as parking close-by or a sign 
language interpreter then please let us know.  Contact the Democracy Officer 
whose name and contact details are given on the order of business for the 
meeting. 
 
Every effort will also be made to make information available in another 
language, either by providing translated information or an interpreter providing 
sufficient advance notice is given.  Telephone York (01904) 551550 for this 
service. 

 

Agenda AnnexPage 1



 
Holding the Executive to Account 
The majority of councillors are not appointed to the Executive (40 out of 47).  
Any 3 non-Executive councillors can ‘call-in’ an item of business from a 
published Executive (or Executive Member Decision Session) agenda. The 
Executive will still discuss the ‘called in’ business on the published date and will 
set out its views for consideration by a specially convened Scrutiny 
Management Committee (SMC).  That SMC meeting will then make its 
recommendations to the next scheduled Executive meeting in the following 
week, where a final decision on the ‘called-in’ business will be made.  
 
Scrutiny Committees 
The purpose of all scrutiny and ad-hoc scrutiny committees appointed by the 
Council is to:  

• Monitor the performance and effectiveness of services; 
• Review existing policies and assist in the development of new ones, as 

necessary; and 
• Monitor best value continuous service improvement plans 

 
Who Gets Agenda and Reports for our Meetings?  

• Councillors get copies of all agenda and reports for the committees to 
which they are appointed by the Council; 

• Relevant Council Officers get copies of relevant agenda and reports for 
the committees which they report to;  

• Public libraries get copies of all public agenda/reports.  
 

Page 2



����������	
�����
��� ������������������

�������� ����������������������������������� �!� �
������� "�����

�"��� #�$"��" ��%&'&�

( ������ ������))� ��������"))�*"��
�+��������������� ,�

�
�

���� ����	
	��
���
������
�����
������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
���-�	��.�	����/���0����0�
�1	��1���2���3���������2��������4�1���3�	���1��
�	�3	�5�0�
�1������	������2�����42��21/������2��-������������2��14��016�
�������	�����.�	��0�
�1	�06�
�
�

���� ���������
�
 ���)���7� �21�� �2�� �������� ��� �2�� �1��� ��
������ �������� 8�

�9�
���/�� ���-�	� ��	� ����� ��	1��4�:� 2��0� ��� '�
��
��-�	� %&&;� -�� 133	�/�0� 1�0� ��4��0� -�� �2��
�9�
���/�����-�	�1��1�
�		�
��	�
�	06�

�
�

���� ��������	
�����	��
���
�
���.1��	�3�	��0��21���2�	��210�-����<�	�4���	1����������3�1
�1���2��������4�
��0�	��2������
��=��(�-��
�(1	��
�31������
2���6����1��������2�����3�1
�	��
1	������������0�	��2����0�/�0�1��14��01������6�
�
�

���� ����������
�

	��	
�	��
�����	��
��	�����
����

��������
�
�2���9�
���/�����-�	�
����0�	�0�1�	�3�	��.2�
2�-	��42�����2���1���������
�2�� 
��� 	������� ��� �2�� /�2�
��� ��	/���� 1�0� >��������1�	�� 
1		��0� ���� ���
	��1����� ��� �2�� �2	��42� �	1���
� ��� �2��*���������	�  �10� 1	�16� �2�� ��	/���
1�0� >��������1�	�� 210� -���� 
1		��0� ���� �����.��4� �2�� ���	�0�
����� ��� �2��
*1��	���0���
����
2���6�
�
?�� 	�3�	��0� �21�� �2�� �����.��4� 100�����1�� 	�3	�����1������ 1�0� ����	�1�����
210�-������
��0�0�����2��	�3�-���2�0�14��017�

•� 
�������� ��� �2�� ���	����-�	� �1�
��	��3� ��� �2�� �
�����
� 1�0�
����� ��/���3����� �/�	/��.� 1�0� �
	������ ���������� ��33�	���4�

����	������2��	�10�����2	��42��	1���
�

•� 
�����������<�	���0��������*���������	� �10��
•� 0��1�������
��31	1��/�� �	1���
�/���������	������1	� 	�10�� ��� �2��1	�1�

1�0�	���		�0����100�����1��
�		��3��0��
��	�
��/�0��	������	��
����
1���� ��� ��33�	�� ��� 3����� 
����	�� 1�0� �2�� 	����	�0�
�������� �2�� �����	�
�1���1��*1��	���06��

Agenda Item 2Page 3



�
����
�	��
����	��0��21���2���3��0�������3	�3��1���.�	������
��������������
��
�	1���
���/����-����21���2��	�����������2����	/����.���0�-��
����0�	�0�1��31	��
���1�������	���/1��1���������2��*1��	���0�
�
����
2���6�

�
 �3	�����1������ ��� ��33�	�� ��� 3����� 
����	�� ��� *���������	�  �10� .�	��
	�
��/�0� �	��� 1� ��
1�� 	���0���6� ?�� 	���		�0� ��� �2�� 0��	�����1�� ��31
�� ���
�2	��42��	1���
�����2��	���0����1��	�10����
���2����1	-��
�
����
2����210�
-���� ��3�������06�?��
����	��0� �21�� �2���� �������210�-���� 	1���0�.��2�
��
1�� ����
����	�:� �2�� *1	0� ���������� 1�0� ����
�	�6� ?�� ��1��0� �21�� �2��
��
	�1��� ��� �	1���
�.1��1���
���4� 	���0�����.����-���4�1�0�>�1�������� �����1��
�2��	�10�.1��-���4����0�1��1�@	1��	��=�1�0��21���2�����������
��/�����������
.���0�-��3�����
����	�6�
�
 �3	�����1������ .�	�� 1���� 	�
��/�0� �	��� 1���2�	� *���������	�  �10�
	���0���� .2�� 
����	��0� �21�� 2�� 210� �3�
��� ��� �2�� �1�
��	��3� 1�0� �21��
	���0�����.�	�� ���
��4� ��	�1� �1����4���������� ��� �2�� �	1���
�3	�-����� ��� �2��
1	�16�?����1��0��21��	���0�����210������1�;AB���
	�1�������2	��42��	1���
�
���
�� �2�� 
21�4���1��*1��	���0�.2�
2� 210� 	������0� ���1� 0���	��	1����� ���
�2��	���/�	������6�?��	�>�����0��2���9�
���/�����-�	������33�	���3�����
"� ��	� �2���1
��4����1��	1���
� �4��1������	0�	� ���
�����-��2�*���������	�
 �10�1�0��	���
�������	�/��1�� 	���0����� ����� �21�� �2���3	�-����.���0������
4���.�	��6�
�
����
����	�C��4:�1����������2��*1	0����-�	�:�	���		�0�����2��3������	1���0�
-�� ���	� �
���6� ?�� ��1��0� �21�� �����.��4� �.�� /�	�� .���� 1����0�0� 3�-��
�
������4�� �2�� �15�	���� ��� ��
1�� 	���0����� 210� 	�>�����0� 
����	�� ���
*���������	� �106�?�� 0�0� 2�.�/�	� >�������� �2�� ��
������� ����	���
������
�	�/��	���0���������2����	/��6�?��.�����������1����21��1��	1���
����.���	/���
-���	�� 1�0� 1���	� �2�� .�	
�� 1�� �2��*1��	� ��0� 5��
����� .���0� 21/�� -����
������6�?����1��0� �21�� �2���9�
���/�����-�	�210�1�0���� ���	����/�� �2����
3	�-�����1�0�2��	�>�����0�1�3�����
����	������2��	�106�
�
����
����	�(��	
�:��3�
��1��1�� ��0�/�0�1�����-�	���� �2���1�
��	��36�?��

����	��0� �21�� 2�� ����2�	� ��33�	��0� ��	� �33���0� �2�� ���	�0�
����� ��� 1�
%&�32��3��0�������1���2���������.���0�-�����������	
��46�?��3�����0������21��
1���3�����
����	��.���0�21/��1�
��

��������
��1���2��*1��	���0�5��
�����
1�0��21��2��������2��������3�����.1�������
	�1����2��
131
��������2���5��
����6�
�
�2�� �9�
���/�� ���-�	� 
����	��0� �21�� �2�	�� .1�� 
��1	��� 1� 0�/������ ���
�3������ ��� .21�� ��� 1���2��4� �2���0� -�� 0���� ��� �1��� 3	�-����� ��� �2��
*���������	�  �10� 1	�16� �2�� >��������1�	�� 	������� 0�0� 2�.�/�	� ��0�
1���
��	��4�1�0�.�0��3	�10���33�	����	�1�%&�32��3��0������6�?����1��0��21��2��
210� 3	�/������� ��0�
1��0� �21�� 1�� �91���1����� ��� �2��*1��	� ��0� 5��
�����
.���0�-����0�	�1
���.2����2��	�/���0��1�����210�-��������3�	1�������	�1�
����1-���3�	��0���������1�0��21������
�	��.���0�-��	�3�	���4�-1

�����2������
�3	��4� %&'&6� ?�� .���� ��� ��� 3����� ���� �21�� �2�� �	1���
� /������� ���
*���������	� �10�.�	��	��1��/������.�.2���
��31	�0���������1	�	���������
�2������6�

�����0�	1�����.1���2���4�/�������2�������.��4��3�����7�

Page 4



"6� ��� -�4��� 3	�
�����4� 1� �	1���
�  �4��1����� �	0�	� ��� 
�����
*���������	�  �10� 1�0� �	���
������ �	�/�� 1�� �2��	� *1��	� ��0�
5��
�����6�*2����� �2����3�����.1������ 	�
�����0�0�0������ �2�� �1

�
��� 1� ��4����
1��� �15�	���� ��� ��
1�� 	���0����� ��� �1/��	� ��� ��
2�
3	�3��1��:� ��� �2���0� -�� ����0� �21�� ��� �2��� �3����� .1�� 
����0�	�0�
133	�3	�1��� ��� 3	�
��0� .��2� �2��� �2��� .���0� ��/��/�� ��	�2�	�

������1����� .��2� 1��� 1���
��0� ��
1�� 	���0����� ��� 1��� ��	��0� �3�
3	�3��1�6� "��� ��-��>����� �-5�
������ ��� �2�� 3	�3��1��� 0�	��4� �2��
�	1���
�  �4��1����� (	�
���� .���0� 21/�� ��� -�� -	��42�� -1

� ��� 1�
����	����
����������������	�
����0�	1�����-���	��1���1
�����
���0�-��
�1
������
��������2�	�	�106�

�6� ��� 
1		�� ���� ��	�2�	� ��/����41������ ����� �2��������� 	�10��1		�.��4��
1�0� D� �	� 
2�
1���� ��� 0��
��	14�� �2	��42� �	1���
6� �2��� .1�� ���� 1�
	�
�����0�0� �3����� 1�� ��33�	�� �	��� ��
1�� 	���0����� ��	� ��
2�
��1��	���.1����.6�

�6� �����3�������1�%&�32�E������	��2��1	�16��2���.1��1�	�
�����0�0�
�3����� 1�� �2�	�� .1�� 4���	1�� ��33�	�� 0������	1��0� �	��� �2�� ��
1��
	���0�����1�0� �2�� 	�0�
�0��3��0��-	��42��1-����-���9�����4� �	1���
�

1����4� ��1��	��� 5������� ��.�	��4� �2���3��0� ������8� �2��42� ����2���0�
-�� ����0� �21�� �2��� ��� ����
���� ��� 21/�� 1� ��4����
1��� ��31
�� ��� �2��
/����������2	��42��	1���
6�

�6� ��� ����� �2�� ���
���� ��� �2�� �	1���
� ��	/���� 1�0� >��������1�	�� 1�0�
�1
�������	�2�	�1
�����1���2�������6����:��21���2��	�������-��
����0�	�0�
1�� 31	�� ��� 1��� ����	�� �/1��1����� ��� �2��*1��	� ��0� 
�
��� �
2���6�
�2������1�	�
�����0�0��3�����-�
1�����2����%��1���	��1	�����
�06�

 ���)���7� �21���2���9�
���/�����-�	���	��������	1��4��14	���7�

�,� ��� ��3������� 1� %&�32� E���� ��	� �2���
1	�16��

��,� ��� ����� �2�� ���
���� ��� �2�� �	1���
�
��	/����1�0�>��������1�	��1�0� �1
�����
��	�2�	�1
�����1���2��������������	�0�
��4�
1�3�����
����	�6��

���,� �21�� �2�� 	������� ��� �2�� ��	/��� -�� 1����

����0�	�0� 1�� 31	�� ��� 1��� ����	��
�/1��1����� ��� �2�� *1��	� ��0� 
�
���
�
2���6��

�/,� �21�� �2��(���
��-�� 	�>�����0� ���������	�
�2�� 5��
������ ��� �2��� 1	�1�.��2� 1� /��.� ���
100	�����4�1����91�3���� �2����1�� ���0�
�����133	�3	�1���0	�/�	�-�21/���	6�'6�

�

 �"���7�� �"�� �2�� ��.�	� �3��0��0��� ��� �2�� �	1���
� 
1����4�
5��������2�����	�0�
��������1���.�	��3��0������6�

"�� �2�� �3������ ��� 
�����4� �2�� 1	�1� ��� �2	��42�
�	1���
�0��������21/����33�	�� �	���1���4����
1���

Page 5



3	�3�	���������2����
1��
����������21��.���0�-��
1���
��0�-��1�
����	�6�

"�� �2�� �3������ ��� ��/����41���4� �2�� ���� ���

2�
1���� 1�0� 	�10� �1		�.��4�� 1	�� ���� .����
��33�	��0�-����
1��	���0����6��

�
"
����� �>��	�0��
'6���3�������%&�32�E����1�0�	�>�����(���
�����������	�
5��
�����6���
�

�
�
"���

�
���� ���

���
	������	�������

�����	�������	��
��	����

��	���

������
����

��������	������
�
�����0�	1�����.1��4�/������1�	�3�	�:�.2�
2��������0��2��.�	
��21��210�-����
��0�	�1
��� -�� �2�� ����
��� ��� 31	���	�2�3� .��2� �
2����� ��� ��
	�1��� �2��
���-�	� ��� 5��	����� -���4� �10�� ��� �
2���� -�� ����1��1-��� ��0��� ���
�	1��3�	�6��2��	�3�	��1����	�/��.�0��2��1���
�1��0� @�1���	������ ����
2���=�
�����1��/��:�.2�
2�210�-�����0�������0�1��31	������2���	1/���3�1����4�3	�
���6��
�
�2���9�
���/�����-�	�
����	��0��21��-��2����	����		����1�0�(����	�.�	��
-	�10��� ��� ��33�	�� ��� �2�� 3	�3��1��� 1�0� �21�� ���	� ��		����� 100�����1��

��������.���0�-��0�1���.��2�-������
�	�������0���2��������46��
�
����
�	��	���		�0����"���9�"�����2��	�3�	��.2�
2��2�.�0�1���91�3����13�
����
2����3���
�0��3�����1�0�
����	��0��21���2������	�
�	
����2�.�0��2����
3	�3�	�����.��2���1�#��������.1�
����1��
2����1�0��2������	�
�	
����2����.��2�
.��2���1�'&��������
�
���	�0�6�
�
�2���9�
���/�����-�	��93	����0�
��
�	��1-���� �2��3	������ �21���
2�����
41/�� ��� �2��	� �
2���� �	1/��� 3�1��� 1�0� ����	�1����� ��� �2��	� .�-�����6� ?��
��1��0� �21�� 2�� 2�3�0� �
2����� .���0� ��� ����	�� 4�/�� �	1/��� 3�1��� 1� 2�42�	�
3	������1��.1�
��4�1�0�
�
���4�.�	��2�1��2��	��3�����6�
�

 ���)���7� �21���2���9�
���/�����-�	���	��������	1��4��
14	������7�

�,��������2��
�����������2��	�3�	�6�

��,� ����� �21�� ����
�	�� .���� 	�/��.� �2�� �������
01�1:� ��-�����0� ��� $1��1	��%&'&� ��� 
	�1���
1� 3	��	���� ����� ��� �
2����� .2�� .���� -��
�3�
���
1���� �1	4���0� ��� %&'&D''6� "� ��	�2�	�
	�3�	��.����-��-	��42�����1�����	��������4����
0���	������2��3	��	��������6�'6�

���,� ��
��	14�� ��1��� 1�0� �
2���� 4�/�	��	�� ���

�������� ��� ��414�� .��2� �2�� �
2���� �	1/���
3�1����4� 3	�
���� ��� ��
	�1��� �2��
3�	
���14����� 5��	������10������
2����-��
����1��1-��� ��0��� 1�0� �3�
���
1���� ���

Page 6



�1
�� 1/1��1-��� 3�-��
��:� ��	� �91�3��� /�1�
�2��	� ����	���� .�-� �����:� ��0�/�0�1�� �
2����
�	1/��� 3�1��� 1�0� 3�	��	�1�
�� ������	��4�
����	�1����6�

��/,�*��2��2��14	�����������2��1���
��0��
2����:�
1����3	�/�0������	�1����������0�/�0�1���	1/���
3�1�������2������
����.�-�����6�%6�

�
 �"���7� ��2���	1/���3�1����4�3	�
����.���������1���
����1���

1�0����0������01���2����.��2��2����414���������
�2��.2�����
2����
��������6�

�
�
"
����� �>��	�0��
'6� �3�	��-1

��������	��������4����3	��	��������6��
%6���
��0���	1/���3�1������.�-�����������.��4���
���1	��
14	������6���
�

�
"���
�
"���

�
���� ������
���

���
��	���
����������	������
����
����

��

�
�	����������
���������

�����
�

�����0�	1����� .1�� 4�/��� ��� 1� 	�3�	�:� .2�
2� 
����0�	�0� 1� 3��������
3	������0�����2������
����1	���	�����2����1	:�.2�
2�
1���0�����2������
������
�1
��	�3	�����1���������1���	��2��	������1
���-���2�����-�	�#�-�����	/�
��
�2	��42�
���	1����	
�1�0���������
���	���� +	1�2�	� �21����	���1��,6��2��
3��������210�	�>�����0��21���2����	/�
���	1/����0�/�1������-�.�1�0��������
)���1	0=��(�1
��1�0�	�/�	��0�����2��	��������0�-���2����	��	����-�	�'F�
.2�
2���
�	3�	1��0��2��?������1�
�)��36�

�2�� �9�
���/�� ���-�	� 	�3�	��0� 	�
��3�� ��� 1�� 100�����1�� 	�3	�����1�����
�	��� 1� ��
1�� 	���0���� ��� ��33�	�� ��� �2�� 1���	1����� ��� �2�� 	����:� 0��1���� ���
.2�
2� 210� -���� ���� ���� ��� �2�� 	�3�-���2�0� "���96� ?�� ��1��0� �21�� �2��
����
���210�.�	
�0�21	0��������	���21��1�-�����	/�
�����
�.1������1���0�
����2��?������1�
�1	�1�1�0���.��21���2����	/�
��210�������0�0�.��2�������
�21�� 1��� 
21�4�� 
���0� 	������ ��� ��	�2�	� ��
��/�����
�� ��� 1� ��4����
1���
���-�	�������	�6�

 ���)���7� �21���2���9�
���/�����-�	���	��������	1��4��14	������
��7�

�,���������2��
�����������2��3�������6�

��,��1
�������	�2�	�1
���������2��	�����4�����2���
-�����	/�
�6�'6�

�
 �"���7� "� ���-�	� ��� -��� ��	/�
��� 
����
�� .��2� 	����� #� �	���

"
��-� 1�� -��2� �2�� 	1��.1�� ��1����� 1�0� ��� ��������
��	��������	��4�1�4��0���/����������	
21�4�6�����
�	��.����

�������� ��� .�	
� .��2� -��� �3�	1��	�� ��� 0�/���3� �2��
��/��������	/�
������2���31	�������	
6�

Page 7



"
����� �>��	�0��
'6�����	����10�3��������	����0�
�����6���
�

�
"���

�
� �� 	�!�����

��

	���


��

����

��������"�

�
�����
	��
��
��	�������
���
�
�2���9�
���/�����-�	�
����0�	�0�1� 	�3�	�:�.2�
2� 	��1��0� ��� 	�
��3�����1�
3���������������
��:�	�41	0��4�3	�3���0���3	�/�������1���2����	�2�	����0�
����1�����	���:�!����	0�1�0�.2�
2����42��1�0�
������1�� ��� ���1�0�2�.� �2��
�
2�����2���0�-��1���0�0����100	�����2���������	1���06�
�
�2���9�
���/�����-�	� 	�3�	��0� 	�
��3�� ���100�����1�� 
�������� �	��� �2��
)�
1�����-�	�.2����0�
1��0���33�	����	��2������
�	��	�
�����01�����.��2�
1� 0	�33�0� 
�	-� 1�0� �1
����� 
	�����4� .2����� ������ 	��1����4� �2�� ��3�	�1���
133�1	1�
�� ��� �2�� !����	0�  �10� 
����	/1����� 1	�16� ���	�� �="4�	��� 1�0�
(����	���33�	��0��2���1		�.��4�����2�����	1�
������2��!����	0�(1	
����1��6�
�
����
�	��0��3�1��0�3�1����2�.��4� �2��.�0�2����� 	�10�1

����3������ ��� �2��
/�
�����������!����	0� �106�
�
"�	�3	�����1��/�����!����	0�(1	��2�����
���	���		�0�����2��3	�3���0�.�	
��
1���2��!����	0�(1	
�5��
�����1�0�����1	���	�14	������������4���1�������2����
3	�3��1��� 1�� ��� ����� 14	������� 210� -���� 	�1
2�06� �2�� 	���		�0� ���
3	�-�������
�����	�0�1�� �2��� 5��
����:�
���������2��1051
����-����0�
��	��
��	4�	�� 1�0� ��� 3	�-����� �21�� .���0� 	������ �	��� �2�� �1		�.��4� ��� �2��
���	1�
�6�
�
����
�	�� 
����	��0� �21�� ���4�2��
������1������210�-������0�	�1
������1���
�2�����������1�0��21���2���9
����/��
	�����4�0���1�
��1��!����	0�(1	
�210�
-���� �0�������0� ��� �2�� �	�4��1�� �1����� "�0��6� �2��� ��1��0� �21�� ��	�2�
��	
�2�	��(���
��1������33�	��0��2���1		�.��4�����2��	�106�
�
�2���9�
���/�����-�	�3�����0������21���2����.�	��	��1��/��������	��������
����2��
����9������2���/�	1����
2����1�0��21���2�	��
���0�-��1���33�	�������
����1		�.��2��.�0�2�����2����9���1��1��1��	�01������3	�-�����.�	���0�������06��
�
?���2���
����0�	�0��2�������.��4��3��������	��2�����	1�
�����!����	0�(1	
7�

•� �3�����'�������	��1����2���9�����4��1�����-���3	�/�0��0	�33�0�
�	-�
�1
�����
	�����4������	�
���������2��3�0���	�1��0���	�������6�

�
•� �3�����%�������1���0��2���
2����1���	�4��1����3	�3���0����
1��	�

��	� �2�� ���0�� ��� 3�0���	�1��� .2����� ������ �1���1����4� ����1-���
/�2�
��1	�1

���6�

�

 ���)���7� �21���2���9�
���/�����-�	���	��������	1��4��14	����
��7�

�,���������2��
������������2���	�3�	�6�

��,� ��3������� �3����� ':� 0��
	�-�0� ��� "���9� ":� ���
	��1��� �2�� � �9�����4� �1����� -��� 3	�/�0�� 0	�33�0�

Page 8




�	-� �1
����� 
	�����4�� ��:� �	� 
����� ��:� �2��
3�0���	�1��0���	����������	��2�����	1�
�����!����	0�
(1	
��'6�

���,��2��1���0�0�1	�1�����4	������	�1
��4�1���2�.��
���������1	��1�
���������������2���
2���6�

�/,� "0/���� !����	0� (1	��2� ����
��� �21�� �2��� �2���0�
���2�	�1

�3��������� �2����1�01	0�0���4���2����	��
���	�3�1
���2���9�����4��2����	�1�� �2��!����	0�(1	
�
-��� ���3� �	� ���� �2��	� �.�� D� *1	0� ����������
���0��4����	���	-��2��2���9�����4��2����	6�%6�

�

 �"���7� �����3	�/��
��0�������1���4��2�����
���������2��
�		�0�	�
.2�����100	�����4��2��
��
�	����������
����	�C���2�
"�30���1�0���
1��	���0����6�

�
�
"
����� �>��	�0��
'6�"		1�4�������0�	�1
��14	��0�.�	
�6��
%6�"0/����(1	��2�����
������0�
�����6���
�

�
�*��
�*��

�
�#�� �

��	��"����������

�������	��������

�

�����0�	1�����.1��4�/������1�	�3�	��.2�
2�10/���0��2���9�
���/�����-�	�
����2��	������������	�2�	���/����41������������2��3����-�������1��1���������	1���
�
��4�1��� 1�� �2�� 5��
����� ��� ����21�D��� �1	�=�D����21�� (1	
� ?��3��1�� ���
3	�/�0�� 1� 3	��	���� 
	�����4� �/�	� ����21�� ��	� 
�
�����6� �2�� 	�3�	��
2�42��42��0�3	�-�����.��2��2��3	�/�����3	�3��1�������������4�1�����1����	1���
�
��/�������1���2��5��
�����1�0�0��1���0��2��1���	�1��/�������������21��210�
-�����93��	�06�

�2�� �9�
���/�� ���-�	� 
����	��0� �21�� ��� 100�����1�� 
�������� �	�
	�3	�����1������210�-����	�
��/�0�����2����3	�3��1��6�?��1

��.��04�0�
�21�:�31	������	�1���2���
�	�1�����1�0�31	����-�
1�������
����:��2���	�4��1��
��	�� �9�����/�� ��4�1���1����� �
2���� 210� ���� ����0� ��� -�� 3	1
��
1�6� ?��

����	��0� �21�� �2�� @31	1����=� 
	�����4� �
2���� 133�1	�0� ��� 21/�� ��	��
4���	1����33�	��1�0�3	�/�0�0�1���3�������	������
����0����
�
�����6�

�2���9�
���/�����-�	�
����0�	�0��2�������.��4��3�����7�
�

•� �3���������8�3	�4	�����2��G31	1����H�
	�����4��
2����3	�3��1��
�2�.�� ��� "���9� �� �2	��42� ��	�� 0��1���0� 0���4�� 1�0� 3�-��
�

������1����6�

�
•� �3������.��8�0�/���3���������2��1���	�1��/���
2�����3���������

"���9������3	���	��
������2��31	1�����
	�����46�
�

•� �3����� �2	��� 8� 1-1�0��� 3�1��� ��� 3	�/�0�� 1�� ��3	�/�0� 
�
���

	�����4��1
������1���2�����
1����6�

Page 9



 ���)���7� �21���2���9�
���/�����-�	���	��������	1��4��14	�����
��7�

�,� ����� �2�� ����
�	� 10/�
�� �21�� �2�� �1��� 3	�-����:�
1���
�1��0� .��2� �2�� 3	�/����� ����� 5��
�����
��4�1���1����� 3	�3��1�� 0��1���0� ��� 31	14	132�� #�
1�0�F:�1	���21���2�7�

�� ��
���1	�� �����0� -���0��4� 1�0� 3�1����4� 
��������
���1���	��2������21��(1	
�?��3��1�����	1�
��41����
1	������
�������-���-�1���0I�

�� ?�42� �����1��0� 
���� ��	� �2��� �3����� -	��4�� �����
>�������� .2��2�	� �2�� �
2���� 3	�/�0��� 4��0�
/1������	�������1�0�
���0�-��5�������06�

��,� ���3	��
�3��� 133	�/1�� ��	� �2�� 1���	�1��/�� �3�����
�2�.�� ��� "���9� �� ��� �2�� ����
�	� 	�3�	�6� �2���
��/��/��� �2�� ����1��1����� ��� 1� ��4�1�� 
���	����0�
@31	1�����
	�����4=���	�-��2�3�0���	�1���1�0�
�
������
1��1���
1�����-��.�����2���9�����4�3���
1��1�0��2��
���	1�
���������21��(1	
�?��3��1�6�

���,� "��2�	���� ����
�	�� ��� ��0�	�1
�� ��	�2�	� 0��1���0�
0���4�:� 1�0� 3�-��
� 
������1����:� ��� �2�� �
2����
�2�.�� ��� "���9� �:� .��2� �2�� ���
���� ��� -��
	�3�	��0����1�����	����
��������������������4���	�
1�0�
�����������3��������4��2���
2���6�'6�

 �"���7� ����
�	�� 
����0�	� �21�� �2���� 3	�3��1��� .���� 3	�/�0��
��4����
1��� ��3	�/������� ��	�
�
�����:�1�� �2���100	����
1� 0����
���� 
	�����4� 3����� �/�	� 1� �15�	� 	�10� ��� 1�
��	1��4�
� 
�
��� 	����6� �2�� 3	�3���0���1��	��� .���0�
1�����1
��1���4����
1���
���	�-������ ��.1	0�� �2��1����
����2������
���1��1���
���4�����6�

�

�
"
����� �>��	�0��
'6���0�	�1
��0��1���0�0���4��1�0�
������1���������
2����
1�0�	�3�	��-1

��������	��������46���
�
�

�
�
����

�
�
�
�
�
�
���	����/���1���.1�:��9�
���/�����-�	���	��������	1��4��
J�2��������4���1	��0�1��K6&&�3��1�0������2�0�1��K6K&�3�L6�

Page 10



 

  
 

   
 
Decision Session 
Executive Member for City Strategy 28 January 2010 

Joint Report of the Director of City Strategy and the Director of Resources 

Revenue Budget Estimates 2010/11 – City Strategy 

 Purpose of Report 

1. This report presents the 2010/11 budget proposals for City Strategy.  It 
includes: 

• the revenue budget for 2010/11 (Annex 1) to show the existing budgets 

• the cost of pay and price increases, increments and settlement of pay 
and grading appeals for the portfolio 

• proposals for budget service pressure costs and savings options for the 
portfolio area (Annexes 2 and 3) 

• fees and charges proposals (see separate report for details) 

2. Budget Council will be held on 25 February 2010 and will make decisions on 
the overall budget for the Council.  In order to facilitate the decision making 
process the Executive are meeting on 16 February 2010 to consider the 
preferences identified by the individual portfolio Executive Members and the 
results of the consultation exercise. 

3. The City Strategy Executive Member is therefore asked to consider the 
budget proposals included in this report and identify the preferences (after 
considering the proposals in annexes 2 and 3) which will be considered by 
the Executive as part of the consultation exercise. The Executive Member is 
invited to provide comments on the budget proposals in this report. 

 Background 

4. The Council’s 2010/11 budget is being developed within the constraints of an 
extremely challenging financial climate.  An extensive transformational 
programme has begun which will promote efficient delivery of services whilst 
at the same time ensuring funding is available for investment in key areas 
across the Council. 

5. The 2009/10 revenue budget monitoring process has identified areas of 
activity that currently have insufficient capacity to deal with the increased 
demands on those services.  In addition consideration has been given to the 
Councils top priorities, and the need to ensure that key front line areas of 
activity, particularly those in respect of adults and children, can continue to be 
provided.  From this analysis, specific areas of  investment   will be proposed 
within the Councils 2010/11 budget , in particular within the following areas : 

Agenda Item 4Page 11



• Adult Social Care 
• Children’s Social Care 
• Waste Management 

 

6 The proposed budget for 2010/11 reflects the need to direct investment into 
these areas in order that planning and monitoring of service delivery and 
improvement can take place against an adequate resourcing platform. 

7 In addition, the Council recognises that adequate provision needs to be 
created within the budget  to ensure that the continuing financial impact of the 
economic downturn can be contained effectively.  Following detailed review 
of economic pressures both on front line services and the Council’s Treasury 
Management function, it is proposed that in the region of £3m will be set 
aside within the budget to contain the impact of these pressures. 

8 In order to create the financial capacity to enable adequate investment in 
these priority areas the budget strategy has been based around certain key 
financial management principles.  A fundamental maxim of the strategy is 
that Directorates have been made clearly responsible for the robust and 
effective self-management of their existing financial resources and that 
restraint has been expected in putting forward for additional growth in budget 
to be funded corporately. 

9 Directorates have been expected to contain their net expenditure within 
clearly defined and strictly enforced cash limits with a clear expectation that 
Directorates self manage all non-exceptional budget pressures within this 
cash limit.  These pressures include the anticipated cost of the pay award 
and any incremental increases due in year.  Explicitly linked to self-
management within defined cash limits has been the requirement for 
directorates to demonstrate the re-allocation of budgets in order to contain 
internal financial pressures.  

10 As part of the development of the budget, the Council's transformation 
programme has also been robustly reviewed in view of the need to create 
capacity to invest in priority areas.  A realistic acceleration of efficiency 
savings will be included within the corporate budget proposals in order to 
ensure that the additional financial capacity introduced in this budget is based 
around a challenging but realistic approach to driving out efficiency savings 
across the organisation.  However, it must be stressed that achievement of 
these efficiencies will not be easy to deliver, but they are essential in order to 
deliver investment into priority areas.  The scale and pace of the 
transformation process in coming years will be critical to the Council 
maintaining financial stability.  In addition, clearly with the future pressures on 
public spending, combined with known forecast increased pressures in 
children’s care, adult care, and waste management, the Council will face the 
need to both achieve significant transformational change, and review the 
overall type and level of service provision in coming years. 

11 The key issues within City Strategy has been the impact of the economic 
downturn on planning and parking income as well as pressures on 
concessionary fares. It is however recognised that  reviews of service activity 
need to take place in order to develop and implement mitigation plans that 

Page 12



will constrain the impact of these financial pressures.  

12 The Director of Resources’ report ‘2010/11 Budget Strategy and Medium 
Term Financial Planning 2011/12 to 2013/14’ was adopted by the Executive 
on 15 December 2009.  This paper is the result of ongoing work against this 
agreed framework. 

13 The Local Government Finance settlement for 2008/09 included indicative 
figures for 2010/11 to enable the Council to consider future budget issues.  
The provisional settlement for 2010/11 gives an increase in formula grant of 
£1.090m, an increase of 2.51%. 

 Budget Proposals for City Strategy 

14 A summary of the budget proposals is shown in Table 1 below.  Further 
details on each individual element are presented in the subsequent 
paragraphs.  The annexes also contain other potential growth and savings 
items which at this stage are not being recommended to Members. 

 Table 1 - Summary of Budget Proposals 

 Para. 
Ref 

£'000 

Base Budget 2009/10  15 4,992.7 
Allocation for pay increases 16 74.8 
Allocation for price increases  17 61.2 
Service Pressure proposals (Annex 2) 18 1,668.0 
Previously agreed non recurring growth – impact 
on 2010/11 

19 31.0 

Savings proposals (Annex 3)  21-23 -1,716.0 

Proposed Budget 2010/11  5,111.7 

 

 Base Budget (£4,993k) 

15 This represents the latest budget reported to Members, updated for the full 
year effect of decisions taken during 2009/10, e.g. supplementary estimates. 
The breakdown of the base budget is shown in annex 1. 

 Pay Inflation (£+75k) 

16 These calculations are based on a pay increase for APT&C of 1%.  The 
negotiations for the 2010/11 settlement have not yet started, although there is 
pressure from the Treasury that increases are kept to a minimal level. 

Price Inflation (+£61k) 

17 The budget proposes that, due to the underlying low rate of inflation, there is 
a general price freeze on most budgets.  The amount allowed for price 
inflation is to fund known price increases, e.g. contract payments.  

 

Page 13



Service Pressures (+£1,668k) 

18 A range of options for service pressure proposals has been considered and in 
view of the overall available resources it is proposed that only those 
proposals shown in Annex 2 are included as the preferred options for City 
Strategy.  The proposals put forward are the result of a rigorous assessment 
process, which included looking at the risk to customers and staff, legislative 
requirement, proven customer demand and the Council’s corporate 
objectives. 

Previous years Non-Recurring Growth continuing into 2010/11 (£+31k) 

19 Council previously approved the additional cost City of York Council was 
incurring holding onto land options relating to the Waste PFI project. This 
cost will continue into 2010/11.  

 Contingency Items 

20 Members should note that there are potential expenditure pressures that may 
materialise in 2010/11 but which are not yet certain or not quantifiable at this 
stage.  There are a number of income shortfalls across the Directorate that 
have been identified primarily as a result of the economic downturn. The 
issues are listed in Table 2 below.  The Executive will decide on 16 February 
2010 whether or not to set a general contingency for 2010/11. 

 Table 2 - Contingency Issues for 2010/11 

 £’000 
Contingency Issues for 2010/11  
Reduced income as a result of Economic Downturn 
Car Parking Income 
Planning Income 
Building Control Income 
Section 38 Income 
Yorwaste Dividend 
 

 
250 
200 
100 

80 
130 

Total 760 
 

Savings Proposals (-£1,716k) 

21 Members will be aware that the 2009/10 budget savings were significant and 
that all Directorates are operating within a tight financial environment.  In 
seeking to achieve savings for the 2010/11 budget Directorates have 
examined budgets with a view to identifying savings that have a minimum  
impact on the services provided to the public, customers and the wider 
Council and are not already included in the blueprints for More For York.  
Instead they have concentrated on initiatives that: 

• improve quality and efficiency 

• take advantage of ongoing service and/or Best Value reviews 

• generate income 

Page 14



• address budgetary underspends 

• improve cash flow and interest earnings 

• generate savings from the technical and financial administration 
functions of the Council 

22 In addition to the initiatives listed above the price increases and list of savings 
also include proposals to increase fees and charges (see also section below).  
Generally these are in line with inflation, but this is varied by directorates as 
they are affected by national constraints/requirements.  

23 Annex 3 shows the full list of savings proposals for the City Strategy portfolio.    

 Fees and Charges 

24 The details of the proposed fees and charges for the services provided by 
this portfolio are set out in a separate report.  Where fees and charges 
increases are being set above the inflation requirement they have been 
included in Annex 3.  

 Consultation 

25 This paper forms part of the Council's budget consultation.  The other 
streams being undertaken include a public consultation leaflet circulated city 
wide (results should be known by mid-January), a public meeting where 
participants debated savings and growth proposals attended by the Leader of 
the Council and the Chief Executive, and a further session with the business 
communities of the city. 

 Options 

26 As part of the consultation process the Executive Member is asked for their 
comments or alternative suggestions on the proposals shown in Annexes 2 
and 3. 

Analysis 

27 All the analysis is provided in the body of the report and the annexes. 

Corporate Priorities 

28 The budget represents the opportunity to reprioritise resources towards 
corporate priority areas.  Key examples of this happening within this portfolio 
area are: 

• proposals to freeze car park charges and introduce further discounts 
for low emission vehicles will support both thriving city and sustainable 
city agendas.  

• Growth for the concessionary fares scheme supports sustainable city 
by encouraging public transport 

• Review of speed limits will support targets relating to the safer city. 

Page 15



Implications 

29 The implications are: 

• Financial - the financial implications are dealt with in the body of the 
report.   

• Human Resources – the savings proposals identified relate to the 
reduction of upto 6 posts across the directorate of which one post is 
vacant. Where requested HR has been involved in the development of the 
budget proposals and has worked with local managers to identify the HR 
implications of the proposals.  HR implications will be managed in 
accordance with established council change management procedures. 

• Equalities – an equalities impact assessment has been undertaken to 
support the budget process. This has not flagged any significant equalities 
issues. 

• Legal - there are no legal implications to this report. 
• Crime and Disorder - there are no specific crime and disorder implications 

to this report. 

Risk Management 

30 Key reporting mechanisms to Members on budget matters will continue to be 
through mid-year monitoring reports and the final Revenue Outturn report for 
the year.  The format/timing of these reports has recently been considered by 
the Council's Management Team but as a minimum they will report on 
forecast out-turn compared to budgets and will also address the progress 
made on investments and savings included within the budgets.   

31 The budget setting process always entails a degree of risk as managers 
attempt to assess known and uncertain future events.  This year has 
demonstrated the difficulty of achieving this.  As with any budget the key to 
mitigating risk is prompt monitoring and appropriate management control.  As 
such updated figures and revised corrective actions will be monitored via 
Directorate Management Teams, Corporate Management Team and the 
monitor reports during the year. 

Recommendations 

32 The Executive Member is invited to consider whether the budget proposals 
are in line with the Council's priorities. 

33 The Executive Member is invited to provide comments on the budget 
proposals for savings and growth which have been prepared by Officers and 
contained in this report, which are intended to from part of the Council's 
budget to be considered by the Budget Executive on 16 February 2010. 

• 2010/11 Base budget as set out in paragraph 15; 

• Service Pressure proposals as set out in Annex 2; 

• Savings proposals as set out in Annex 3; 

 Reason : As part of the consultation for the City Strategy 2010/11 budget 
 

  

Page 16



Contact Details 
 

Authors: Chief Officers responsible for the report: 
Patrick Looker 
City Strategy Finance Manager 
551633 
 
 

Bill Woolley 
Director of City Strategy 
Tel: 1330 
Ian Floyd 
Director of Resources 
Tel: 551100 

 
Specialist Implications Officer(s)  None 
 

Wards Affected:  List wards or tick box to indicate all All √ 

Background Working Papers 

Budget Working Papers held in City Strategy Finance 

Equalities Impact Assessment held in City Strategy Finance 

Annexes 

Annex 1 - 2010/11 Base Budget 
Annex 2 - Service Pressure Proposals 
Annex 3 - Savings Proposals 
 

 

Page 17



Page 18

This page is intentionally left blank



Annex 1

CITY STRATEGY

SERVICE PLAN

SUMMARY

Detailed Expenditure Cost Centre Expenditure

DETAIL

2010/11  
Base 
Budget COST CENTRE

2010/11  
Base 
Budget

£'000 £'000

Employees 8,062 City Development & Transport 3,645
Assets & Premises 376
Transport 149 Planning 1,633
Supplies And Services 2,618
Miscellaneous 680 Directorate Mgt & Support (285)
Recharges 5,329
Capital Financing 1,395
Concessionary Fares 4,726
GROSS EXPENDITURE 23,335

Income (18,342)

NET EXPENDITURE 4,993 NET EXPENDITURE 4,993

Page 19



Page 20

This page is intentionally left blank



CITY STRATEGY
SERVICE PRESSURES

Annex 2

Net Cost
2010/11 One-

Ref Brief Description £(000) Off

CSTRCOR1 Concessionary Fares
The delivery of the concessionary fare scheme for anyone over the age of 60 
years and for persons with a disability that meet set criteria in order to qualify for a 
pass. The additional funding required covers the budget shortfall in 2009/10 
(£420k) inflation and increased usage £380k and the costs of increased take up 
from tokens (£100k). Note that these increased costs will be offset by savings 
and additional grant. 900

CSTRCOR2 Waste PFI procurement budget:
The council is undertaking a joint procurement exercise with NYCC for a waste 
processing facility to reduce the amount of waste landfilled. This is important due 
to the need to avoid increasing landfill tax liabilities and potential LATS penalties. 
There are ongoing costs from the procurement, primarily legal and financial 
consultants, as the preferred bidder is appointed and a commercial contract is 
drawn up. Current estimates of CYC’s contribution for the procurement is £200k.

200
CSTRG01/02 Staffing Cost increases

Cost of increments across the Directorate (£179k) and Pay and Grading appeals 
(£103k) 282

CSSTRG06 Companion Passes
Extension of the eligibility of companion passes has been accepted by the 
Concessionary Fares Partnership. This has been estimated to have a small 
additional cost for the council. 35

CSSTRG07 Environment Agency Levy
The EA are looking to increase the council levy from £33k to £49k in 2010/11. 
The 50% increase is to fund flood prevention measures across the Yorkshire and 
Humber area. 16

CSSTRG08 Cycle Training Income
The council historically has enjoyed income levels from providing training courses 
to cycle trainers from other Local Authorities. This income stream is no longer 
providing significant revenue. 15

CSTRN02 Local Development Framework
There are still significant costs to completing the Local Development Framework 
process. The budget to support the initiative is only set to March 2010. It is 
proposed to use the anticipated one-off final year award of Planning Delivery 
Grant (see below) to fund the programme for 2010/11. The largest costs to be 
incurred relate to the examinations of the core strategies and Area Action Plans. 
A new approach to York North West will have to be considered with the 
preparation of new and revised planning briefs and frameworks. 180 ü

CSSTRN03 Speed Limit Review
Budget to allow review of appropriate speed limits across the city. 15 ü

CSSTRN05 Car Parking Initiatives
To purchase 4 new parking ticket machines in selected car parks to accept credit 
and debit card payments. 25 ü

Recurring Bids Total 1,448

One-off Bids Total 220

Page 21



Page 22

This page is intentionally left blank



City Strategy
Savings Proposals

Annex 3

City Strategy Net Cost One-
2010/11 Off

Ref Brief Description £(000)
CSCOR01 Concessionary Fare Reimbursement Reduction -612

Anticipated savings arising from a reduced reimbursement rate paid to operators 
from 1st Dec 2009.

CSCOR02 Concessionary Fare Additional Special Grant -288
Anticipated additional grant from Department for Transport for supporting 
concessionary fares in 2010/11. This element combined with CSCOR01 will fund 
the growth pressure.

CSTRS01 Vacancy Factor 2.5% -175
Introduction of a vacancy factor to most staffing areas across the Directorate will 
result in a reduction in budget totalling £175k.

CSTRS02 Review of RESPARK Charges -10
Review of charges for RESPARK charges resulting in an increased charge for 
high emission vehicles (£110). It is proposed to freeze charges for standard 
permits at £93 and widen the eligibility for low emission vehicles (£44) to include 
VED bands A-C.

CSTRS03 Savings across Land Charges budget -19
Reduced costs in transmission fees and other supplies and services to fund 
additional staffing costs leaving service a non profit area.

CSTRS04 Secretarial Services Restructure -15
A restructure of the management support service structure in Autumn 2009 
resulted in the deletion of one post from the team.

CSTRS05 Development Control Restructure -130
Restructure of the planning team resulting in the split of teams into Major and 
Other applications rather than the current geographic split. This will result in a 
number of posts being deleted as workload reduces. It is likely also to result in 
the reduction of one area planning sub-committee.

CSTRS06 Contribution re Park & Ride City Centre Support -15
Review of Park & Ride support arrangements undertaken within council and bus 
operator resource.

CSTRS07 Reduction in Transport Planning Initiatives -40
A 20% reduction in transport educational campaigns. The reduction would be for 
promotions seen as 'soft' measures.

CSTRS09 Anticipated Additional Concessionary Fare Grant -82
The growth of £900k required for concessionary fares can be funded from a 
reduction in the reimbursement rate to operators and a first call on the additional 
grant assumed from the government. There remains a further £82k which can be 
offered as a saving.

CSTRS11 Car Parking Initiatives -60
Rolling out improved technology (ticket machines that accept debit / credit cards) 
and redesignating Esplanade car park as a short stay car park is expected to 
increase income yields. Proposal also to increase maximum permitted length of 
stay at short stay car parks.

CSTRS12 Park & Ride additional income -50
Proposal to maximise value from the Park & Ride licence fee including potential 
10p fare increase for return trip. 

CSTRS12 Housing & Planning Delivery Grant
Assumed additional grant from Department of Communities and Local 
Government from Year 3 of the Housing and Planning Delivery Grant (£365k 
compared to £145k budget). This saving will fund one-off growth proposals. -220 ü

Total Recurring Savings -1,496

Total One-Off Savings -220

Page 23



Page 24

This page is intentionally left blank



 

  
 

   
 

Decision Session for Executive Member for 
City Strategy 

28 January 2010 

 
Report of the Director of City Strategy and Director of Resources 
 

REVENUE BUDGET 2010/11 – CITY STRATEGY FEES & CHARGES 
 

Summary 

1. This report advises the Executive Member of the proposed fees and charges 
for the City Strategy portfolio for the financial year 2010/11 and the anticipated 
increase in income which they will generate.  The Annex to the report sets out 
the detail of the individual charges. 

 
 Background 

2. The fees and charges for City Strategy are complex and varied.  Some are 
controlled by regulation, some by national guidelines and others by market 
forces or the cost of administering the service.  In the City Strategy Revenue  
budget report elsewhere on the agenda, the Executive Member is advised of 
the effect on the service of budget reductions.  The level of fees and charges 
has been set against this background of severe financial constraint and service 
reductions.  Income from fees and charges is a key factor in setting budgets 
and totals approximately £9.5 million for the City Strategy portfolio.  In ensuring 
a balanced budget, it is therefore essential that income is at least maintained, if 
not improved.  

 
Proposals 

3. In most cases it is proposed to increase charges in line with inflation. More 
detail is provided for proposals relating to parking below.   

 
Residents Parking 

4. Residents parking schemes allow residents and visitors to park near their 
property.  The council recovers the costs of administration and enforcement of 
residents parking schemes through charges for permits. For 2010-11 it is 
proposed to leave the charges unchanged. However, the number of vehicles 
qualifying for the discount rate will increase by including vehicles in DVLA 
defined Band C, as well as Bands A and B. 

 
5. For 2011/12 there will be a full review of permit charges taking account of 

vehicle emissions and size. A report considered by the Executive on 19th 
January 2010 considered extending the number of vehicles qualifying for 

Agenda Item 5Page 25



discount as well as increasing the fees paid by vehicles in DVLA Bands J, K, L 
and M. Vehicles in the middle range are likely to see little or no increase. The 
fees and charges schedule in the annex is based on the decision made by the 
Executive.  

 
Car Parking 

6. The current budget for parking income totals £5.8 million and is therefore very 
important to the overall budget.  

 
7. Car park charges have been relatively stable for a number of years. There has 

been no change in charges at short-stay car parks since 2005/06 and the cost 
to residents in standard stay car parks has increased by only 10p per hour 
since 2004/05.  

 
8. Given the current economic climate it is proposed to freeze all car parking 

charges at short stay and standard stay car parks and all on-street tariffs.  The 
current 70p per hour tariff at Foss Bank car park is also proposed to be frozen.  

 
9. It is proposed however to make a number of minor alterations in response to 

comments from residents and traders. It is proposed to re-designate Esplanade 
car park to short stay from standard stay in an attempt to increase turnover at 
this popular car park. It is also proposed to roll out the investment in improved 
car park ticket machines that will enable payment by either debit or credit 
cards. This will follow the trial of  new machines in operation at Piccadilly. 

 
10. It is also proposed to widen the 50% discount for season ticket pass prices to 

be in line with changes to the RESPARK scheme ie include vehicles in low 
emission bands A, B or C. 

 
Consultation 

11. This paper forms part of the Council's budget consultation.  The other streams 
being undertaken include a public consultation leaflet circulated city wide 
(results should be known by mid-January), a public meeting where participants 
debated savings and growth proposals attended by the Leader of the Council 
and the Chief Executive, and a further session with the business communities 
of the city. 

Options 

12. The Executive Member is asked for comments or alternative suggestions on 
the fees and charges proposals shown in the Annex. 

Analysis 

13. All the analysis is provided in the body of the report and the annexes 
 

Page 26



Corporate Priorities 

14. Fees and Charges proposals are a key element of the Council’s budget 
process. Where fees can increase above inflation to provide savings this can 
free up resources to deal with key council priorities. The use of discounted 
prices for short cars and those with low emissions assists in the sustainable city 
corporate priority. 

Implications 

Financial  
 
15. The financial implications are dealt with in the body of the report.   

 
Other Implications  

 
16. There are no Human Resources, Equalities, Legal, Crime and Disorder or 

Information Technology, Property or Other implications to this report  
 
Risk Management 

17. The budget for city strategy is supported by income from fees and charges 
totalling £9.5m. Fees and charges levels are therefore of major significance in 
ensuring a balanced budget is set especially since the income generated is 
often dependent on external factors such as housing market, general economic 
climate. The income from fees and charges will continue to be monitored as 
part of  the budget monitoring cycle.   

Recommendations 

18. The Executive Member is invited to provide comments on the fees and charges 
proposals for consultation for 2010/11 contained in this report. 

 Reason:  As part of the consultation for the 2010/11 budget setting process. 

 

Contact Details 
 
Author: 

 

Chief Officers Responsible for the report: 
Patrick Looker 
Finance Manager 
City Strategy 
Tel No 01904 551633 
 

Bill Woolley 
Director of City Strategy 
 
Ian Floyd 
Director of Resources 
  Report Approved √ Date 18 January 2010 

 

Specialist Implications Officer  
 
There are no specialist implications 
 
 

Page 27



Wards Affected:   All √ 

 

For further information please contact the author of the report. 

 

Annex – Fees and Charges Proposals 2010/11 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 28



Annex

a) Off-Street Car Parks
Evening 24 hour

Note < 30 Mins Upto 1 hr 1-2 Hours 2-3 Hours 3-4 Hours 4-5 Hours Over 5 hours 6.00pm to 08.00am Charge using mobile phone

Short Stay 1 Resident N/A £1.70 £3.40 £5.10 £6.80 £8.50 free
Non-Res N/A £2.00 £4.00 £6.00 £8.00 £10.00 £2.00

Standard Stay 2 Resident N/A £1.10 £2.20 £3.30 £4.70 £6.00 £10.00 free £10.00

Non-Res N/A £1.70 £3.40 £5.10 £7.10 £9.00 £10.00 £2.00 £10.00
Foss Bank 3 70p per hour
Bishopthorpe Rd 3 N/A £0.20 £0.40 £0.60
East Parade 3 £0.20 £0.40 £3.40 £5.10

<1 Hour <3 Hours Over 3 hrs <1 Hour Over 1 Hr
£5.00 £8.00 £11.00 £5.00 £8.00

c) On Street Parking
Evening

< 30mins <1 Hour 1-2 Hours 2-3 Hours
6.00pm to 
08.00am

Standard Rate 4 Resident N/A £1.70 £3.40 £5.10 free
Non-Res N/A £1.70 £3.40 £5.10 £2.00

Micklegate  4 & 5 Resident £0.20 £0.40 £3.40 £5.10 free
4 & 5 Non-Res £0.20 £0.40 £3.40 £5.10 £2.00

Priory Street 4 & 5 Resident N/A £1.50 £3.40 £5.10 free
4 & 5 Non-Res N/A £1.50 £3.40 £5.10 £2.00

City Centre Resident free
Footstreets Non-Res £2.00
Respark Shared Use 
Areas

Non-Permit 
Holders

N/A £0.60

< 2 Hours 2- 5 Hours 5-12 Hrs

£3.30 £5.00 £8.00

Parking Tariffs from 1st April 2009

Note 4 - There is no resident discount available on-street except that parking after 6pm is free for residents. Parking for over 2 Hours is only allowed after 3pm

Note 5 - No charges on Sundays between 8am and 1pm in Micklegate and Priory Street

Union Terrace and St George's Field Coach Parks

b) Coach Parking 

 Daytime Charges (0800 - 18:00)

£1.60Foss Islands Road  

Note 1 - Bootham Row, Castle and Piccadilly (Piccadilly closes at 6:30pm and so there is no evening charge)
Note 2 - Castle Mills, Esplanade, Haymarket, Marygate, Monk Bar, Nunnery Lane, Peel Street, St. Georges, Union Terrace.  The £10 ( over 5 hours fee) allows parking until 8am the next day.

Castle Mills closes at 8:30pm and charges only apply till 8:00pm, Peel Street - charges only apply on Mon - Sat from 8:30 - 18:00. Sunday is free.
Note 3 - There are no resident discount or evening charges at Foss Bank, Bishopthorpe Road or East Parade. The charges only apply until 18:00. Foss Bank closes at 18:00.  

Streets Included

Carmelite St, Dundas Street, Lawrence Street, Lord Mayor's Walk, North Street, 
Palmer Lane, Piccadilly, Skeldergate, Tanner's Moat, The Crescent, Toft Green, 
Walmgate.

Blake St, Duncombe Place, Fossgate, Goodramgate, Lendal, Piccadilly, St Deny's 
Road, The Stonebow, Walmgate.

Parkiing for over 2 hours is only allowed after 3pm.

Summer (1/4/09 - 31/10/09) Winter (1/11/10 - 31/3/11)

d) On-Street Parking for large vehicles

 Daytime Charges 

Market Traders with 
Permit

P
age 29



Annex

a) Off-Street Car Parks
Evening 24 hour

Note < 30 Mins Upto 1 hr 1-2 Hours 2-3 Hours 3-4 Hours 4-5 Hours Over 5 hours 6.00pm to 08.00am Charge using mobile phone

Short Stay 1 Resident N/A £1.70 £3.40 £5.10 £6.80 £8.50 £1.70 per additional hour free
Non-Res N/A £2.00 £4.00 £6.00 £8.00 £10.00 £2 per additional hour £2.00

Standard Stay 2 Resident N/A £1.10 £2.20 £3.30 £4.70 £6.00 £10.00 free £10.00

Non-Res N/A £1.70 £3.40 £5.10 £7.10 £9.00 £10.00 £2.00 £10.00
Foss Bank 3 70p per hour
Bishopthorpe Rd 3 N/A £0.20 £0.40 £0.60 free
East Parade 3 £0.20 £0.40 £3.40 £5.10

<1 Hour <3 Hours Over 3 hrs <1 Hour Over 1 Hr
£5.00 £8.00 £11.00 £5.00 £8.00

c) On Street Parking
Evening

< 30mins <1 Hour 1-2 Hours 2-3 Hours
6.00pm to 
08.00am

Standard Rate 4 Resident N/A £1.70 £3.40 £5.10 free
Non-Res N/A £1.70 £3.40 £5.10 £2.00

Micklegate  4 & 5 Resident £0.20 £0.40 £3.40 £5.10 free
4 & 5 Non-Res £0.20 £0.40 £3.40 £5.10 £2.00

Priory Street 4 & 5 Resident N/A £1.50 £3.40 £5.10 free
4 & 5 Non-Res N/A £1.50 £3.40 £5.10 £2.00

City Centre Resident free
Footstreets Non-Res £2.00
Respark Shared Use 
Areas

Non-Permit 
Holders

N/A £0.60

< 2 Hours 2- 5 Hours 5-12 Hrs

£3.30 £5.00 £8.00

d) On-Street Parking for large vehicles

Union Terrace and St George's Field Coach Parks

 Daytime Charges 
Streets Included

Carmelite St, Dundas Street, Lawrence Street, Lord Mayor's Walk, North Street, Palmer 
Lane, Piccadilly, Skeldergate, Tanner's Moat, The Crescent, Toft Green, Walmgate.

Market Traders with 
Permit

Foss Islands Road  £1.60

Blake St, Duncombe Place, Fossgate, Goodramgate, Lendal, Piccadilly, St Deny's Road, 
The Stonebow, Walmgate.

Note 4 - There is no resident discount available on-street except that parking after 6pm is free for residents. Parking for over 2 Hours is only allowed after 3pm

Note 5 - No charges on Sundays between 8am and 1pm in Micklegate and Priory Street

Note 2 - Castle Mills, Haymarket, Marygate, Monk Bar, Nunnery Lane, Peel Street, St. Georges, Union Terrace.  The £10 ( over 5 hours fee) allows parking until 8am the next day.

Castle Mills closes at 8:30pm and charges only apply till 8:00pm, Peel Street - charges only apply on Mon - Sat from 8:30 - 18:00. Sunday is free.
Note 3 - There are no resident discount or evening charges at Foss Bank, Bishopthorpe Road or East Parade. The charges only apply until 18:00. Foss Bank closes at 18:00.  

b) Coach Parking 
Summer (1/4/10 - 31/10/10) Winter (1/11/10 - 31/3/11)

Proposed Parking Tariffs from 1st April 2010

 Daytime Charges (0800 - 18:00)

Parking for over 2 hours is only allowed after 3pm.

Note 1 - Bootham Row, Esplanade, Castle and Piccadilly (Piccadilly closes at 6:30pm and so there is no evening charge)

Maximum stay of 3 hours

P
age 30



Annex
FEES AND CHARGES 2010/11

PARKING SERVICES - SCHEDULE OF SEASON TICKET CHARGES

2009/10
Current Proposed Increase
Charge Charge Over 2009/10

£ £ %

Annual Season Ticket Discount vehicle rate £497.50 £497.50 0.00%
Standard rate £995.00 £995.00 0.00%

Monthly Season Tickets

Standard Stay car parks Discount vehicle rate £50.00 £50.00 0.00%
Standard rate £110.00 £110.00 0.00%

Weekly Season Tickets
Preferential phone rate only

Standard Stay car parks Discount vehicle rate £20.00 £20.00 0.00%
Standard rate £44.00 £44.00 0.00%

Contract Parking (Bulk) *

Foss Bank - Annual £300.00 £300.00 0.00%

Contract Parking 
(City Centre Resident 24 hour)

Foss Bank - Monthly Discount vehicle rate £30.00 £30.00 0.00%
Standard rate £60.00 £60.00 0.00%

Foss Bank - Annual Discount vehicle rate £325.00 £325.00 0.00%
Standard rate £650.00 £650.00 0.00%

Surface - Monthly Discount vehicle rate £25.00 £25.00 0.00%
Standard rate £55.00 £55.00 0.00%

Surface - Annual Discount vehicle rate £288.00 £288.00 0.00%
Standard rate £635.00 £635.00 0.00%

Frequent User Pass

Non-Resident - Annual Standard rate £120.00 £120.00 0.00%
Discount Rate £60.00 £60.00 0.00%

Non Resident - Quarter Standard rate £40.00 £40.00 0.00%
Discount Rate £20.00 £20.00 0.00%

Resident - Quarter Standard rate £21.00 £21.00 0.00%
Discount Rate £10.50 £10.50 0.00%

Note
Discount vehicle rate means a vehicle 2.7m or less in length OR a low emission vehicle 
within the DVLA defined BAND A, B or C
* ie 10 or more purchased at the same time

Page 31



FEES AND CHARGES SCHEDULE 2010/11 ANNEX

Note : Vat is chargeable at the appropriate rate

2009/10

SERVICE Current Proposed  % Increase Proposed  % Increase Proposed  % Increase 
Charge Charge Charge Charge
£ £ % £ % £ %

Parking Services

Special Control Permit -Standard * 93.00 93.00 0.0% 44.00 0.0% 110.00 new
Quarterly charge * 29.00 29.00 0.0% 13.63 0.0% 34.30 new

Special Additional Permit -Standard * 93.00 93.00 0.0% 44.00 0.0% 110.00 new
Quarterly charge 29.00 29.00 0.0% 13.63 0.0% 34.30 new

Business Permit * 335.00 335.00 0.0% 157.50 0.0%

Guest House Authorisation Card 335.00 335.00 0.0%

Multiple Occupancy Permit * 134.00 134.00 0.0% 63.00 0.0%

Landlord's Permit * 134.00 134.00 0.0% 63.00 0.0%

Household Permit -Standard * 93.00 93.00 0.0% 44.00 0.0%
Quarterly charge * 29.00 29.00 0.0% 13.63 0.0%
-Second 142.00 142.00 0.0%
Quarterly charge 45.75 45.75 0.0%
-Third 296.00 296.00 0.0%
Quarterly charge 80.50 80.50 0.0%
-Fourth 592.00 592.00 0.0%
Quarterly charge 155.50 155.50 0.0%

Visitor -Standard 1.10 1.10 0.0%
-Concessionary 0.20 0.20 0.0%

Doctors Permit * 44.50 44.50 0.0% 21.00 0.0%

Discretionary (R37) Permit * 44.50 44.50 0.0% 21.00 0.0%

Day use R37 Permit - Standard 1.10 1.10 0.0%
- Charities 0.20 0.20 0.0%

Authorisation Card without Permit 2.50 2.50 0.0%

Property Renovation Permit - Quarterly * 93.00 93.00 0.0% 44.00 0.0%
- Daily * 2.30 2.30 0.0% 1.05 0.0%

Commercial Permit * 465.00 465.00 0.0% 269.00 0.0%

Commercial Permit (Specific Zone) * 120.00 120.00 0.0% 56.50 0.0%

Replacement Permit Respark First Replacement
Amount 

remaining on 
Permit

Amount remaining 
on Permit

Second Replacement 124.00 124.00 0.0%
- Concessionary 40.00 40.00 0.0%

Replacement Minster Badge First Replacement 5.00 5.00 0.0%
Second Replacement 5.00 5.00 0.0%

* discount available for vehicles 2.7m or less in length or a low emission vehicle within DVLA defined Band A, B or C.
** additional charge for high emission vehicles within DVLA band J,K,L or M.

2010/11
Standard Charge

2010/11
Premium Rate**Discounted Rate*

2010/11

P
age 32



FEES AND CHARGES SCHEDULE 2010/11 ANNEX

Note : Vat is chargeable at the appropriate rate

2009/10
SERVICE Current Proposed Increase 

Charge Charge Over 2009/10
£ £ %

Transport and Highway Fees and Charges

7% of 7% of n/a
Scheme Scheme 
Costs Costs

Checking Developers Plans
£500 + 1%   of 
estimated 
works

£500 + 1%   of 
estimated 
works n/a

Scaffold & Hoarding licences
Initial consent and I month permission 49.00               50.00              2.0%
Each additional month or part thereof 28.00               29.00              3.6%
Skip licence 23.00               24.00              4.3%
Fee for dealing with unlicensed skip 33.00               34.00              3.0%
Cherry picker licences 49.00               50.00              2.0%

Building materials on highway licence
 £6 per day (or 

part) 
 £6 per day (or 

part) 0.0%

Vehicle Crossing Fees - Flat Fee 42.00               43.00              2.4%

Road Closures (exc VAT and advertising costs) 330.00             340.00            3.0%
(Non-Commercial Events Exempt)

Temporary Waiting Restrictions 120.00             123.00            2.5%

Brown Sign Applications 240.00             250.00            4.2%

2010/11

Highways Adoption Fees

Pavement Cafe Licences 486.00             498.00            2.5%

General Solicitor Highway Enquiries Simple 60.00               62.00              3.3%
Medium 80.00               82.00              2.5%
Complex 162.00             166.00            2.5%

Approval consent for House Builder signs 230.00             235.00            2.2%

Rental charge for House Builder signs on street furniture

 £15 per month 
(or part) per 

sign 

 £15 per month 
(or part) per 

sign Nil

 NRSWA (Set Nationally)
Section 50 Licence Administration 200.00             200.00            Nil
Special Permission Inspections 200.00             200.00            Nil
Utility sample fee 50.00               50.00              Nil
Investigatory/ Third Party 68.00               68.00              Nil
Defect fee 47.50               47.50              Nil

Special Permissions £750 or 6% £750 or 6% Nil

 Dial and Ride - Single 1.75                1.75                0.0%
 (pass holder) 0.90                0.90                0.0%
- Return 3.50                3.50                0.0%
(pass holder) 1.75                1.75                0.0%

Page 33



FEES AND CHARGES SCHEDULE 2010/11 ANNEX

Note : Vat is chargeable at the appropriate rate

2009/10
SERVICE Current Proposed Increase 

Charge Charge Over 2009/10
£ £ %

2010/11

 Road Safety
Children

Pre Basic Cycle Training Level 1 £2.50 / child £2.50 / child Nil

Basic Cycle Training Level 2 £12 / child £12 / child Nil

Advanced Cycle Training Level 3  £6 / child  £6 / child Nil

Adults

1:1 adult training (first hour)  £16 / adult  £16 / adult Nil
1:1 adult training ( 2 hours)  £22 / adult  £22 / adult Nil

Pedestrian Training

School training by class (nb 2 x 
1.5hr classes replace 3 x 1 hr 
classes)

               25.00                25.00 Nil

External Trainer Training  £400 / person  £400 / person Nil

Planning fees and charges

 Land Charges
Basic search - over the counter 84.00               85.00              1.2%
Basic search - electronic 84.00               85.00              1.2%
Business search 155.00             157.00            1.3%
Optional enquiries 40.00               40.00              0.0%
Additional enquiries 20.00               20.00              0.0%

 Personal search (set by government)
Planning Register tbc tbc Nil
Highway Register tbc tbc NilHighway Register tbc tbc Nil

 Building Control
Letter of confirmation }
Completion Certificates } 32.00               33.00              3.1%
Approvals }

Naming & Numbering
1 - 2 units 26.00               27.00              3.8%
3 - 10 units 52.00               53.00              1.9%
10 - 100 units 104.00             107.00            2.9%
Over 100 units 156.00             160.00            2.6%

 Development Control
Pre-application advice 35.00               36.00              2.9%
Discharge of planning conditions (non-householder) 87.00               89.00              2.3%
Discharge of planning conditions (householder) 26.00               27.00              3.8%
Copies of S106 Agreements 41.00               42.00              2.4%

 Other
Tree Preservation Orders 32.00               33.00              3.1%
Historic Environment Record consultation <50ha 75.00               75.00              0.0%
Historic Environment Record consultation >50ha 150.00             150.00            0.0%
Sites & Monuments Record search 32.00               33.00              3.1%

Page 34


	Agenda
	
	2 Minutes
	4 Revenue Budget Estimates 2010/11 - City Strategy
	City Strategy annex 1 (service plan)
	City Strategy annex 2 (Service Pressures)
	City Strategy annex 3 (savings proposals)

	5 Revenue Budget 2010/11 - City Strategy Fees and Charges
	City Strategy  Fees 10-11


